
 

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

 
DIVISION II 

 

 

 

 

In re the 

Personal Restraint Petition of 

 

EDDIE L. SMITH, 

 

  Petitioner. 

 

 

No. 53172-1-II 

 

ORDER DISMISSING PETITION 

 

 

 

 Eddie L. Smith seeks relief from sanctions imposed following a prison disciplinary 

hearing.  The Department of Corrections (DOC) found Smith committed a serious 

infraction, which resulted in the loss of 15 days of good conduct time.  This infraction was 

for violating prison rule 746, for “engaging in or inciting an organized hunger strike.”  

WAC 137-25-030.1  Smith argues the policy that led to this infraction violated his federal 

First Amendment right to freedom of religion, his federal Eighth Amendment right to be 

free from cruel and unusual punishment, and the federal Supremacy Clause.  Because 

Smith fails to show his disciplinary proceeding was arbitrary and capricious, we dismiss 

his personal restraint petition (PRP).   

 Smith signed up to participate in DOC’s Passover meal plan.  DOC informed Smith 

that he was committing to the Passover menu for the entire week of Passover and that he 

would not receive standard inmate meals during that week.  Smith agreed.  

                                                 
1  DOC also found Smith violated prison rule 352 for “pretending to be ill or injured 

contrary to medical/mental health screening result.”  WAC 137-28-220.  This infraction 

is not a serious infraction and did not result in the loss of good conduct time.   
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 Smith alleges on the first day of Passover, the meat served with lunch made him 

sick.  As a result, Smith wanted to change back to the standard meal plan.  Since Smith 

was notified that he must continue with the Passover menu through Passover, DOC denied 

his request.  The Passover meal included milk, fruit, crackers, cream cheese, jelly, hard 

boiled eggs, grape juice, fresh vegetables, and cookies in addition to lunchmeat and dinner 

entrees.  Smith refused to eat for several days.   

 DOC charged Smith with several infractions, including engaging in or inciting an 

organized hunger strike.  DOC notified Smith of the charges, and gave him the opportunity 

to provide staff and/or witness statements, attend the disciplinary hearing, and make a 

statement.  At the conclusion of the hearing, the hearing officer dismissed all charges 

except two, which included the serious infraction of engaging in a hunger strike.  As a 

result of this infraction, Smith lost 15 days of good conduct time. 

 In addition to filing this petition, Smith also filed a Civil Rights Complaint under 

42 U.S.C. § 1983 with the United States District Court, contesting DOC’s Passover meal 

plan policiy based on the same federal constitutional grounds raised in this PRP.   

 To obtain relief in a PRP from sanctions imposed, a petitioner must show that the 

disciplinary proceeding “was so arbitrary and capricious as to deny the petitioner a 

fundamentally fair proceeding so as to work to the offender’s prejudice.”  In re Pers. 

Restraint of Grantham, 168 Wn.2d 204, 215, 227 P.3d 285 (2010).  Action is so arbitrary 

and capricious as to deny a fundamentally fair proceeding if the petitioner is not afforded 

the minimum due process protections applicable in prison disciplinary hearings or if the 

decision is not supported by at least some evidence.  In re Pers. Restraint of Anderson, 112 

Wn.2d 546, 548-49, 772 P.2d 510 (1989).  Minimum due process in this setting means the 
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prisoner must (1) receive notice of the alleged violation; (2) be provided an opportunity to 

present documentary evidence and call witnesses when not unduly hazardous to 

institutional safety and correctional goals; and (3) receive a written statement of the 

evidence relied upon and the reasons for the disciplinary action.  Dawson v. Hearing 

Comm., 92 Wn.2d 391, 397, 597 P.2d 1353 (1979) (citing Wolff v. McDonnell, 418 U.S. 

539, 563-66, 94 S. Ct. 2963, 41 L. Ed. 2d 935 (1974)).  In addition, there must be “some 

evidence” to support the infraction.  In re Pers. Restraint of Schley, 191 Wn.2d 278, 289, 

421 P.3d 951 (2018).  

 Smith received due process.  And there was some evidence to find him guilty of the 

challenged infraction regarding engaging in a hunger strike.  Accordingly, Smith’s 

disciplinary proceeding was not so arbitrary and capricious as to deny him a fundamentally 

fair proceeding.  Because our review is focused on whether Smith’s disciplinary proceeding 

was arbitrary and capricious, Smith’s constitutional challenges under the United States 

Constitution are left to Smith’s federal action.2   

 Accordingly, it is hereby 

 ORDERED that this petition is dismissed under RAP 16.11(b) and Smith’s  

 

                                                 
2  Smith argues this court must decide his constitutional issues so he can exhaust his 

remedies for his federal claim.  A state prisoner must exhaust all available state court 

remedies before a federal court will consider the merits of a habeas claim.  28 U.S.C. § 

2254(b) and (c); Rhines v. Weber, 544 U.S. 269, 274, 125 S. Ct. 1528, 161 L. Ed. 2d 440 

(2005).  Smith filed a federal civil claim, not a habeas claim.  Moreover, Smith’s efforts to 

exhaust state court remedies may preclude him from litigating the same claims in a civil 

rights action because PRP proceedings can have issue or claim preclusive effects on later 

§ 1983 actions. See Silverton v. Dep’t of Treasury, 644 F.2d 1341, 1347 (9th Cir. 1981) 

(state habeas proceeding precludes identical issue from being relitigated in subsequent § 

1983 action if state habeas court afforded full and fair opportunity for issue to be heard). 
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request for the appointment of counsel is denied. 

 

      ______________________________ 

       Acting Chief Judge, Pro Tem 

 

cc: Eddie L. Smith 

 Clark County Clerk 

 County Cause No. 16-1-02302-9 

 Michelle M. Young, Assistant Attorney General  


